
Questions and Response for 
RFP # 100006441A 

Data Capture Services 
 
 

Q1.       What are the historical volumes for the past 3 years for each of? 
a.       INS2106 (forms without blocks 6, 12 & 15C) 
b.       INS2106 (including blocks 6, 12 & 15C) 
c.       INS2436 
d.       INS5097 
 

R1.  The estimated ROE monthly volumes provided on the Appendix F to Annex A ( p. 62) of the    
RFP are based on the historical volumes of ROEs received in Bathurst. The estimated daily 
volume is 4775 ROE documents of which: 

 
 a. INS2106 (forms without blocks 6, 12 & 15C):  2,077 
  
 b.  INS2106 (including blocks 6, 12 & 15C) :  2,538 

 
       c. INS 2436 “Z”:   160 
 

  The estimated INS 5097 daily volumes:  
 
        d. 2692  

 
Note: Please keep in mind that the above volumes are estimations only given in good faith 

by ESDC and are not binding. 
 

Q2.       To evaluate the average keystroke requirements can ESDC provide physical completed or 
scanned or faxed test samples for each of: 

 
R2a.       INS2106 (forms without blocks 6, 12 & 15C) 



 



R2b.       INS2106 (including blocks 6, 12 & 15C)

 
 
 



R2c.       INS2436 
 

 
 



R2d.       INS5097 
 
 

 



 

 
 



 
 
 



 
 
 



Q3.  Can ESDC provide an estimate for the % of each form type that is handwritten vs. the % of each 
form type that would be machine printed or typed? 

 
 R3. We didn’t really keep track of this type of statistics but based on pure field observations it 
appears that it is more convenient for the employers to simply handwrite their answers on the forms. 
Given that the forms to be completed are in paper format, it is highly unusual for employers to use a 
typewriter or convert the forms in electronic format and then print their answers. As a general rule, 
the provider should plan its data entry processing based on the assumption that the vast majority of 
forms (more than 95%) would contain handwritten fields. 

 
 
Q4.  Can ESDC provide an estimate of the average % of completed fields per form?  I.E. Are all fields 

on all forms fully completed when submitted (100%) or are there fields that may or may not be 
completed (for an example 70% of the form is completed on average).  
 

        R4.  For ROE forms: 
 
As stated in the RFP, we receive an average of 55% of ROEs forms with block 15 C completed by 
employers. This block includes earnings amounts provided by the employer and can contain 
anywhere from 1 to 27 numeric entries. The following fields are critical for the validity of the 
form therefore should be present on all forms: ROE serial number (1), the employer name and 
contact info (3, 4, 5 16, 20, 21, 22), employee information (8,9), employment information (6, 
10,11, 14, 15A, 15B, 16) are critical for the validity of the form therefore they tend to be present 
on all forms. Fields 2, 6, 16, 17, 18, 19 are either not mandatory or not required when field 15 C 
is absent.  
 
For INS 5097 forms:  
 
The employer may or may not return all pages of the document. Some pages may be forgotten 
in error. The number of pages may vary from 1 to 5 depending on the number of weeks that the 
payroll information is requested for. The number of weeks that may need to be data entered is 
highly unpredictable as it may vary based on the specific needs of each case. Over the last fiscal 
year we calculated the average number of weeks included with these forms to be approximately 
10 (9.94).  Having stated this, one should not assume that the same pattern will hold true in the 
future due to the unpredictable nature of the investigations these letters pertain to.    

 
Q5.  In the provided Appendix C to Appendix A sample ROE document (INS 2106 “L” series)- page 51. 

The document contains a 2D Barcode (bottom left corner).  What information is contained in the 
barcode? 
 

R5.  The barcode contains information on the client and the employer and it is designed to be used       
with our future scanning technology in order to streamline processing, increase automation, 
automate integrity checks and reduce operating costs. The data capturing of that field is not in 
scope for the current data entry contract.  

 
 



Q6.  For the sample form “Request for Payroll Information Form (INS5097) (French text first) Front  
of Form – page 67.  The sample contains a QR Code.  What information is contained within this 
code? 

  
R6. The Quick Response (QR) Code is a unique identifier containing the case number, client’s SIN,  
employer’s business number and document ID number. It was designed to facilitate data lifting from 
the document image in preparation for our Department’s move towards digitization of paper 
documents. This unique form identifier will facilitate the linkage of document images to a given 
case. The data entry of this field is not in scope for the purpose of this present contract. 

 
Q7.   What is the general state of these ROE documents when shipped? Are there any attachments, 

sticky notes?  Are there any fastened with paper clips or staples and if so, what is the 
percentage estimate? 

 
R7. As stated on page 40 of the RFP the ROEs “will be printed on white bond paper and will vary in  
quality from very good to excellent”.  Typically, there are no sticky notes or any other documents 
attached with the ROE forms. The contractor is only expected to data capture the information 
contained within the ROE forms according to a specific set of instruction. Should there be any 
additional documents attached with these forms, the contractor will simply need to forward them 
to ESDC for imaging. Since the ROE forms are one page long they are not expected to be stapled 
together.  

  
 

Q8.     For Statement of Work, Section 10. Shipping and Turn-around times: Page 41 - INS 5097 
 
a.     The Contractor must open the envelopes and extract the forms in preparation for 

data entry. – What is the state of the documents within the envelopes?  What is the 
general state of these ROE documents? Are there any attachments, sticky notes?  Are 
there any fastened with paper clips or staples and if so, what is the percentage 
estimate? Are they single or multi-page?  
 

      R8.   Please see the response to Q7. 
 
b.       The turnaround time must not exceed 72 hours from time of receipt to the shipment 

of processed data back to ESDC.  The captured forms must be sorted by regions and 
returned to ESDC on a weekly basis to 5 different locations (Edmonton, Toronto, 
Brossard, Bathurst and Miramichi). 

 
 I) Please provide the addresses for each centre.   

 
   R8bI.  The specific hub addresses will be provided to the contractor at the time of the 
awarding of the  contract. 

 
II) How does ESDC manage these documents once they are returned? (i.e. are they stored 

or destroyed post validation?)  
 



    R8bII. The paper documents received to ESDC will be further sent for imaging to another third 
party service provider which will securely destroy them after ESDC has provided authorization for 
destruction to proceed and the prescribed timeframes. 

 


